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NOTICE
	 NOTICE is hereby given that the 45th Annual General 

Meeting of the Members of Rathi Steel and Power Ltd. 
(CIN: L27109DL1971PLC005905) will be held at The 
Little Theater Group, Copernicus Marg, New Delhi- 
110001 on Friday, September 30th, 2016 at 11:00 A. M. 
to transact the following Business:

Ordinary Business:
1.	 Adoption of Financial Statements
	 	To consider and adopt the audited financial statements 

of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2016, 
together with the Report of the Directors and Auditors’ 
thereon

2.	 Appointment of a Director
	 To appoint a Director in the place of Ms. AKANKSHA 

GARG (DIN 07193111), who retires by rotation and, 
being eligible, seeks re-appointment.

3. 	 Ratification of appointment of Auditors 
	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 

modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139, 142 and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules made thereunder, as amended from time 
to time, the Company hereby ratifies the appointment 
of Messrs M. Lal & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm’s 
Registration No. 011148) as the Auditors of the Company 
to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General 
Meeting till the conclusion of the 46th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to be held in year 2017 to 
examine and audit the accounts of the Company for 
the Financial Year 2016-17 at such remuneration plus 
service tax, out-of-pocket, travelling and living expenses 
etc., as may be mutually agreed between the Board of 
Directors and the Auditors.”

Special Business:
4. 	 To approve the remuneration of the Cost Auditors 

for the financial year ending March 31, 2017 and in 
this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass 
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148 and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules made there under, as amended from time 
to time, the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration 
of Rs.50,000/- (Rupee fifty thousand) plus out-of-pocket 
expenses payable to Messrs R. M. Bansal & Co., Cost 
Accountants, Cost Accountants (Firm’s Registration 
No. 000022) who have been appointed by the Board 
of Directors as the Cost Auditors of the Company, to 
conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company, 
for the Financial Year ending 31 March, 2017.”

5. To appoint Shri Prem Narain Varshney (DIN: 
00012709) as Managing Director and in this regard 
to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modification(s) the following resolution as 
an Special Resolution:

	 RESOLVED THAT Pursuant to the provision of Sections 
197, 198 and 203 read with Schedule V and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 

including any statutory modification or re-enactment 
thereof, or any other law and approval(s) as may be 
necessary in this regard and such condition as my be 
imposed by any authority while granting such consent(s), 
permission(s) and as are agreed to by the Board of 
Directors (hereinafter referred to as the Board, which 
term shall unless repugnant to the context or meaning 
thereof, be deemed to include any committee thereof 
and any committee thereof and any person authorized 
by the Board in this behalf), consent of the member be 
and is hereby accord to the appointment of Mr. Prem 
Narain Varshney as Managing Director of the Company 
for the period of three years with effect from 24-08-2016 
to 23-08-2019 on the terms and conditions including 
remuneration as set out in the statement annexed to 
the notice convening this meeting, with liberty to the 
Board of Directors and remuneration committee of the 
Board to alter and vary the terms and condition of the 
said appointment and /or remuneration as may deem fit 
and as may be acceptable to Mr. Prem Narain Varshney 
subject to the same not exceeding the limits specified in 
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof.

6.	 To approve segregation of both the units on slump 
sale/demerger route  basis to unlock the value 
and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to 
pass, with or without modifications, the following 
resolution as an Special Resolution 

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
section 180 and all other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Memorandum of 
Association of the Company and subject to requisite 
approvals, consents, sanctions and permissions of the 
appropriate authorities, including but not limited to  court 
/ tribunal consent of the Shareholders be and is hereby 
given to reorganize and segregate both the units by a 
process of demerger / slump sale or any other process 
as may be permitted by law.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board be and is hereby 
authorized to consider and approve any proposal to 
reorganize the businesses of the Company and to 
examine in-depth all the relevant issues including 
statutory and legal requirements for a possible 
reorganization of Company businesses”.

By Order of the Board
For Rathi Steel And Power Limited

                                                                          Sd/-     
	  Prem Narain Varshney 

(Managing Director)
Place: New Delhi	 DIN: 00012709
Date: 29 /08 /2016	
	
Registered Office: Chauhan Market, Madanpur Khadar, 

Near Local Shopping Complex,  
Pocket –D & E, SaritaVihar New Delhi- 110076

CIN: L27109DL1971PLC005905
Phone : 011-45002400, Fax : 011-45002410

Email : info@rathisteelandpower.com  
Website : www.rathisteelandpower.com
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Notes:-

1.		 A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is 
entitled to appoint a proxy and the proxy need not be a 
member of the Company.

2.	 The Proxy form must be deposited at the registered 
office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the 
scheduled hour of commencement of the meeting i.e. 
by 11:00 A. M. on September 30th, 2016.

3.	 Members/Proxies should bring their attendance slips 
duly filled in for attending the meeting.

4.	 Members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual 
Report with them at the Annual General Meeting, as 
the copies of the report will not be circulated at the 
meeting.

5.	 The Register of Members and Share Transfer Registers 
of the Company will remain closed from September 24th, 
2016 to September 30th, 2016 (both days inclusive).

6.	 Explanatory statements pursuant to section 102(1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the Special 
Business to be transacted at the meeting under Item 
No.4 is Annexed hereto.

7.	 Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are 
requested to bring their Depository ID Number and 
Client ID Number for easier identification of attendance 
at the Annual General Meeting.

8.	 In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such 
joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be 
entitled to vote.

9.	 A Member desirous of getting any information on the 
accounts or operations of the Company is requested to 
forward his request to the Company at least 10 days 
prior to the Meeting so that the required information can 
be made available at the Meeting.

10.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) 
has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities 
market. Members holding shares in electronic form 
are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their 
Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining 
their demat accounts. Members holding shares in 
physical form can submit their PAN to the Company/ 
Registrar M/s Mas Services Limited (Unit Rathi Steel), 
Phone: (011)26387281-83, Fax: (011) 26387384,      
E-mail : info@masserv.com 

11.	 Members who have not registered their email addresses 
so far are requested to register their e-mail address for 
receiving all communication including Annual Report, 
Notices, Circulars etc. from the Company electronically

12.	 The details of directors who are proposed to be 
reappointed/newly appointed are given in Corporate 
Governance Report. There are no inter-se relationships 
between the Board Members.

13.	 In compliance with the provisions of section 108 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014, the Company is pleased to offer the facility of 
voting through electronic means.

	 The cutoff date for determining the eligibility to vote by 
electronic means or by ballot in the general meeting 
shall be September 23rd, 2016.

	 The members attending the meeting who have not 
already cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be 
able to exercise their right at the meeting in terms of 
notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
dated 19.03.2015.

	 A separate communication containing all necessary 
instructions and relevant information is being sent 
separately.

14.	 The results of voting shall be declared at the Registered 
Office of the Company within 3 days of the conclusion 
of the Annual General Meeting by the chairman of the 
meeting and shall also be displayed at the website of 
the company www.rathisteelandpower.com 

PROCESS FOR MEMBERS OPTING FOR E-VOTING

	 In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as 
amended by the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Amendment  Rules,  2015  and  Clause

	 35B of the Listing Agreement, the Company will be 
providing members facility to exercise their right to 
vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic 
means and the business may be transacted through 
e-Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes by 
the members using an electronic voting system from a 
place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) 
will be provided by National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL). The detailed procedure to be followed 
in this regard has been given in Annexure – A to the 
notice. The members are requested to go through them 
carefully.

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE:

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 
102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating 
to the Special Business mentioned in the accompanying 
Notice:

Item No. 4

Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
the Board in its meeting appointed Messrs R. M. Bansal 
& Co., Cost Accountants, to conduct the audit of the steel 
manufacturing and power generation business for the 
financial year 2016-17 at fee of Rs. 50,000/- plus out of 
pocket expenses. 

In terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(a)(ii) of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost 
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Auditor is to be approved by the Members of the Company. 
Accordingly, the Members are requested to approve the 
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as set out in the 
Resolution at item No 4 of the convening Notice.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and their relatives is in any way concerned or 
interested in the said Resolution.

Item 5.

Shri Prem Narain Varshney is eligible to be appointed as 
Managing Director. Shri Prem Narain Varshney associated 
with company for last about 28 years. He is at the helm the 
affairs and plays a pivotal role in running the affairs of the 
Company. Hence the Board of Directors of the Company 
(the Board) at its meeting held on 24th August 2016 has, 
subject to the approval of members, appointed Shri Prem 
Narain Varshney as Managing Director of the Company for 
a period of 3 (Three) years, which will expire on 23 August 
2019 ,at the remuneration recommended by Remuneration 
Committee of the Board and approved by the Board. It is 
proposed to seek the member’s approval for appointment 
of and remuneration payable to Shri Prem Narain Varshney 
as Managing Director, in terms of applicable provisions of 
the Act.

Terms and Conditions 

1.	 The basic Salary at the rate of Rs. 16,140/- (Rupees 
Sixteen thousand One hundred Forty only) with 
House Rent Allowance of Rs. 3,500/- (Rupees Three 
Thousand Five hundred Only) per month with such 
annual increment as may be decided by the Board of 
Directors and Remuneration Committee of the Board 
subject to the limits as specified in the Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provision 
of the Companies Act, 2013;

2.	 The Managing Director shall be entitled to the following 
perquisites and facilities: a. Perquisites and other 
Allowance as per Company’s rule b. PF, Gratuity and 
other benefits as per Company’s rule.

	 Notwithstanding anything herein, where in any financial 
year during the currency of the tenure of office of 
the Whole time Director, the Company has no profits 
or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay 
remuneration by way of salary and perquisites as 
specified above, subject to the requisite approvals being 
obtained. 

	 The Board recommends the resolution for your approval. 
Except Shri Prem Narain Varshney, none of the other 
Directors/KMP/ their relatives are, in any way concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution 
set out at Item no.5 of the Notice.

Item 6

	 As the members are aware that Company is going 
through deep financial crisis with Net worth of the 
Company is eroded completely and a reference has 
been made to BIFR under the law. It is proposed 
to authorize the Board of directors to consider and 
approve any proposal to reorganize the businesses of 

the Company and to examine in-depth all the relevant 
issues including statutory and legal requirements for 
a possible reorganization of Company businesses by 
way of demerger / slump sale or any other process as 
may be permitted by law to unlock the value of both the 
units.

 

By order of the Board 
For Rathi Steel And Power Limited

						      Sd/- 
				    Prem Narain Varshney 

(Managing Director) 
					     DIN: 00012709
Registered Office: Chauhan Market, Madanpur Khadar, 

Near Local Shopping Complex,  
Pocket –D & E, SaritaVihar New Delhi- 110076

CIN: L27109DL1971PLC005905
Phone : 011-45002400, Fax : 011-45002410

Email : info@rathisteelandpower.com 
Website : www.rathisteelandpower.com

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 29/08 /2016
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ANNEXURE TO ITEMS 2 OF THE NOTICE
Details of Directors seeking re-appointment/appointment at 
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (in pursuance of 
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement)

Name of the director Ms Akanksha 
Garg

Mr Prem Narain 
Varshney

Director Identification Number 
(DIN)

07193111 00012709

Date of Birth 24/02/1997 10/07/1952

Nationality Indian Indian

Date of Appointment on Board 30/05/2015 01-09-1997

Qualification Pursuing 
graduation

Post Graduation

Shareholding in RSPL NIL NIL

List of Directorships held in 
other Companies (excluding 
foreign, private and Section 8 
Companies)

NIL NIL

Memberships / Chairmanships 
of Audit and Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committees 
across Public Companies

NIL Audit Committee, 
Stakeholders 
Relationship 
Committee, Risk 
Management 
Committee

Annexure A to the notice
Instructions for the voting through electronic means
The procedure and instructions for e-voting as given 
in the Notice of the  45th   Annual General Meeting are 
again reproduced hereunder for easy reference:

I.	 In case of Members receiving e-mail from NSDL (For 
those members whose e-mail addresses are registered 
with Company/Depositories):

	 a.	 Open e-mail and open PDF file viz.”RSPL-  
		 remote e-Voting.pdf” with your client ID or Folio No.  
		 as password containing your user ID and password  
		 for remote e-voting. Please note that the password  
		 is an initial password.

	 b.	 Launch internet browser by typing the following 
		 URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/. 

	 c.	 Click on Shareholder-Login.

	 d.	 Put user ID and password as initial password noted  
		 in step (i) above. Click Login.

	 e.	 Password change menu appears. Change the 
		 password with new password of your choice with  
		 minimum 8 digits/characters or combination  
		 thereof. Note new password. It is strongly  
		 recommended not  to  share  your  password  with   
		 any other person and take utmost care to keep  
		 your password confidential.

	 f.	 Home page of remote e-voting opens. Click on 
		 remote e-voting: Active Voting Cycles.

	 g.	 Select “EVEN” of “Rathi Steel and Power Limited”. 

	 h.	 Now you are ready for remote e-voting as Cast 	
		 Vote page opens.

	 i.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and  
		 click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when  
		 prompted.

	 j. 	 Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast 	  
		 successfully” will be displayed.

	 k.	 Once you have voted on the resolution, you will not  
		 be allowed to modify your vote.

	 l.	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals,  
		 HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy  
		 (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/  
		 Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen  
		 signature  of  the  duly  authorized  signatory(ies)  
		 who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer  
		 through e-mail to ranjeet@ranjeetcs.com with a  
		 copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

II.   In case of Members receiving Physical copy of Notice of 
45th Annual General Meeting (for members whose email 
IDs are not registered with the Company/Depository 
Participants(s) or requesting physical copy)

	 a.    Initial password is provided in the box overleaf.

	 b.    Please follow all steps from Sl. No. (b) to Sl. No. (l)  
		 above, to cast vote.

A.   In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently 
Asked  Questions  (FAQs)  for  Members  and  remote 
e-voting user manual for Members available at the 
downloads section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on 
toll free no.: 1800-222-990.

B.   If  you  are  already registered with NSDL for remote 
e-voting then you can use your existing user ID and 
password/PIN for casting your vote.

C.   You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id 
in the user profile details of the folio which may be used 
for sending future communication(s).

D.   The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to 
their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date of 23rd September, 
2016.

E.  Any person, who acquires shares and becomes member 
of the Company after dispatch of the notice and holding 
shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 23rd September, 2016, 
may also obtain the login ID and password by sending 
a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or RTA, MAS Services 
Limited.

	 However, if you are already registered with NSDL for 
remote e-voting then you can use your existing user 
ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot 
your password, you can reset your password by using 
“Forgot User Details/Password” option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following 
toll free no.: 1800-222-990.

F.	 A member may participate in the AGM even after 
exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting but 
shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM.
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G.	 A  person,  whose  name  is  recorded  in  the  register 
of members or in the register of beneficial owners 
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only 
shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as 
well as voting at the AGM through ballot paper.

H. Shri Ranjeet Kumar Verma, Practicing Company 
Secretary (Membership No. FCS 6814 & CP No. 7463), 
Proprietor, M/s. Ranjeet Verma & Associates., Company 
Secretaries has been appointed for as the Scrutinizer 
for providing facility to the members of the Company to 
scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a 
fair and transparent manner.

I.	 The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion 
on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow 
voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of 
“Ballot Paper” for all those members who are present 
at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the 
remote e-voting facility.

J.	 The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at 
the AGM, will first count the votes cast at the meeting 
and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote 
e-voting in the presence of  at least two witnesses not 
in the employment of the Company and shall make, not 
later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a 
consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast 
in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person 
authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the 
same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

K.	 The Results declared alongwith the report of the 
Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the 
Company www.rathisteelandpower.com and on the 
website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of 
result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in 
writing and communicated to the BSE Limited.

BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Shareholders, 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 45th Annual 
Report together with the Audited Statement of Accounts of 
Rathi Steel & Power Limited for the year ended 31st March, 
2016.

1.	 FINANCIAL RESULTS
(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars CURRENT 
YEAR  

(RS. IN 
LACS)

PREVIOUS 
YEAR  

(RS. IN 
LACS)

Revenue from operation 59734.73 66882.35
EBIDTA (4959.11) 696.68
Interest 1785.26 5040.18
Depreciation 2361.16 3186.63
Profit after Tax (PAT) (9105.53) (8239.23)
Dividend NIL NIL

2.	 OPERATIONAL REVIEW: 

During the year under review, the Company achieved 
revenue from operation of Rs. 59734.73 lacs against 
previous year Rs. 66882.35 Lacs. The Company incurred 
loss of Rs. 9105.53 lacs against previous year loss of Rs. 
8239.23 lacs. Company expects to do better if there is an 
improvement in overall industrial scenario.

3.	 DIVIDEND

No dividend has been recommended.

4.	 CAPACITY EXPANSION

Company is having very good reputation in the market for 
value added statinless steel products being manufactured at 
its Ghaziabad unit.In order to cater to growing demand of its 
value added products Company is considering to enhance 
the capacity.

5.	 REFERENCE UNDER SECTION 15 AND OTHER 
APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER III OF 
THE SICK INDUSTRIAL COMPANIES (SPECIAL 
PROVISIONS) ACT, 1985

In line with the provisions of of the Sick Industrial Companies 
(Special Provisions) Act, 1985 (SICA), a reference had been 
made with the Hon’ble BIFR by within the prescribed time and 
reference has been registered with Board of Indsutrial and 
Financial Reconstruction  as case no.126/2015. Hearings 
are going on to declare the Company as sick company 
and once the Board declares the Company as a sick 
Company,rehabilitation/revival scheme will be prepared.

6.	 ECONOMIC SCENARIO AND OUTLOOK

The economic environment facing the steel industry 
continues to be challenging with China’s slowdown impacting 
globally across a range of indicators contributing to volatility 
in financial markets, sluggish growth in global trade and low 
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oil and other commodity prices. The global steel market 
is suffering from insufficient investment expenditure and 
continued weakness in the manufacturing sector. In 2016, 
while we are forecasting another year of contraction in steel 
demand in China, slow but steady growth in some other key 
regions including NAFTA and EU is expected. Growth for 
steel demand in all markets except China is expected in 
2017

7.	 Future outlook :

Grow in the emerging economy: In India, we endeavour to 
position ourselves to leverage growth, from an emerging 
economy and are always looking to expand our Steel 
capacity at regular intervals. The Company is planning to 
make new investments at Ghaziabad Unit for purpose of 
increasing the Capacity of Special Steel Products.

In order to unlock the value of both the units and to increase 
the shareholders value and also to find out long term 
viable solution with its lenders, Company is considering to 
segregate both the unit on slump sale/demerger route basis 
subject to necessary approval from all the authorities.In order 
to give effect for the same Company is seeking shareholders 
approval.All the other necessary approvals will be obtained 
once approval from shareholders are obtained

8.	 CORPORATE DEBT RESTRUCTURING 

The debts of the Company were restructured under 
Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR) mechanism in the 
year 2013-14. Due to delay in implementation of approved 
restructuring scheme Company could not start operations 
at Orissa unit nor was the implementation of setting up of 
rolling mill at Orissa and even its Ghaziabad unit is operating 
at lower than desired capacity utilization. Due to these 
delays Company could not meet its obligations as CDR per 
restructuring scheme. Company has since submitted revival 
scheme in line with RBI Guidelines to all the lenders

9.	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Even though the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 
regarding Corporate Social Responsibility are not attracted 
to the company yet the Company has been, over the years, 
pursuing as part of its corporate philosophy, an unwritten 
CSR policy voluntarily which goes much beyond mere 
philanthropic gestures and integrates interest, welfare and 
aspirations of the community with those of the Company itself 
in an environment of partnership for inclusive development.

10.	 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk management policy of the Company promotes a 
proactive approach in reporting, evaluating and mitigating risks 
associated with the business. Mechanisms for identification 
and prioritisation of risks include business risk environment 
scanning and focused discussions in the Risk Management 
Group (at Senior Management Level) and Risk Management 
Committee meetings.

Although non-mandatory, the Company has constituted a 
Risk Management Committee (RMC) to oversee the risk 
management efforts in the Company under the Chairmanship 
of Mr. Prem Narain Varshney, Whole time Director. The details 
of the Committee along with its terms of reference are set 

out in the Corporate Governance Report, forming part of the 
Annual Report.

A risk assessment update is provided to the RMC on 
periodical basis. The Committee assists the Audit Committee 
and the Board of Directors in overseeing the Company’s 
risk management processes and controls. Some of the risks 
identified are set out in the Management Discussion and 
Analysis which forms part of the Annual Report.

11.	 INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Internal financial control systems of the Company are 
commensurate with its size and the nature of its operations. 
These have been designed to provide reasonable assurance 
with regard to recording and providing reliable financial 
and operational information, complying with applicable 
accounting standards and relevant statutes, safeguarding 
assets from unauthorised use, executing transactions with 
proper authorisation and ensuring compliance of corporate 
policies. The Company has a well-defined delegation of 
power with authority limits for approving revenue as well as 
expenditure, both capital and revenue. The Company uses 
an established ERP system to record day to day transactions 
for accounting and financial reporting.

The Company’s internal audit function monitors and 
assesses the adequacy and effectiveness of the Internal 
Financial Controls. The Audit Committee deliberated with 
the members of the management, considered the systems 
as laid down and met the internal auditors and statutory 
auditors to ascertain, inter alia, their views on the internal 
financial control systems. The Audit Committee satisfied 
itself of the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
financial control system as laid down and kept the Board 
of Directors informed. Details of internal control system are 
given in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report, 
which forms part of the Report.

12. 	VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has adopted a Whistleblower Policy and Vigil 
Mechanism to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors, 
employees and its stakeholders to report their concerns 
about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or 
violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. 
Protected disclosures can be made by a whistleblower 
through several channels. The policy provides for adequate 
safeguards against victimisation of employees who avail 
of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to 
the Chairman of the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no 
personnel of the Company has been denied access to the 
Audit Committee.

13.	 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no contracts or arrangements entered into by 
the company in accordance with provisions of section 188 
of the Companies Act, 2013. However, there were material 
related party transactions in terms of clause 49 of the listing 
agreement. All material related party transactions that were 
entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length 
basis and were in the ordinary course of business.

There are no materially significant related party transactions 
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individual Directors on the basis of the criteria such as 
the contribution of the individual director to the Board and 
committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be 
discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and 
inputs in meetings, etc. In addition, the Chairman was also 
evaluated on the key aspects of his role.

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance 
of non independent directors, performance of the board as 
a whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, 
taking into account the views of executive directors and 
non-executive directors. The same was discussed in the 
Board Meeting that followed the meeting of the Independent 
Directors, at which the feedback received from the Directors 
on the performance of the Board, its Committees and 
individual directors was also discussed.

15.DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and 
compliance systems established and maintained by the 
Company, work performed by the internal, statutory, cost 
and secretarial auditors and external consultant(s), including 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
by the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by 
Management and the relevant Board Committees, including 
the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the 
Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and 
effective during the FY 2015-16.

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the 
Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, 
confirm that:

(a)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b)	 they have selected such accounting policies and applied 
them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end 
of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for 
that period;

(c)	 they have taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d)	 they have prepared the annual accounts on a going 
concern basis;

(e)	 they have laid down internal financial controls to be 
followed by the Company and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and were operating effectively; 
and

(f)	 they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance 
with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

16. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS AND 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORTS

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, the 

made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which 
may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company 
at large.

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit 
Committee as also the Board for approval.

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by 
the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website. None of 
the Directors has any pecuniary relationships or transactions 
vis-à-vis the Company.

14.	 DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Directors Appointment/Re-appointment

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles 
of Association of the Company, Ms. Akanksha Garg, Director 
of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM, and 
being eligible, has offered herself for re-appointment.

Independent Directors

The Independent Directors hold office for a fixed term of 
five years and are not liable to retire by rotation in terms of 
Section 149(13) the Act. In accordance with Section 149(7) 
of the Act, each Independent Director has given a written 
declaration to the Company confirming that he/she meets 
the criteria of independence as mentioned under Section 
149(6) of the Act and the Listing Regulations. Details of 
Familiarisation programme for Independent Director is 
provided separately in the Corporate Governance Report.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Shyam S Bageshara has been appointed as the Chief 
Financial Officer and KMP with effect from 01st July, 2015 
after the resignation of Mr.  Anil Gupta as CFO.

Mr. Pradeep Kumar Rathi, Managing Director (resigned), 
Mr. P. N. Varshney, (Managing Director), Mr. Udit Rathi, 
CEO (resigned)  and Ms. Sakshi Sethi, Company Secretary 
(resigned) are the other KMP as per the definition under 
Section 2(51) and Section 203 of the Act.

Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the corporate 
governance requirements prescribed under the Listing 
Regulations, the Board has carried out the annual 
performance evaluation of its own performance, and that of 
its Committees and Individual Directors.

The performance of the Board and individual Directors 
was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all 
the directors. The criteria for performance evaluation of the 
Board included aspects such as Board composition and 
structure, effectiveness of Board processes, contribution in 
the long term strategic planning, etc. The performance of the 
committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs 
from the committee members. The criteria for performance 
evaluation of the committees included aspects such as 
composition of committees, effectiveness of committee 
meetings, etc.

The Board and the NRC reviewed the performance of the 
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Management Discussion and Analysis and the Corporate 
Governance Report are presented in a separate section 
forming part of the Annual Report.

17. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO

The particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology 
absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as required 
to be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of 
the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 
are provided in Annexure -1 to this Report.

18. AUDITORS

I. Auditors and their report:

In the AGM held on 30th September, 2014, M/s.  M. Lal & 
Co, Chartered Accountants,  were appointed as Statutory 
Auditors of the Company for a period of three years. At 
the AGM held on 30th September, 2015, the shareholders 
ratified the appointment of   M. Lal & Co for a period of 
one year. Ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors 
is being sought from the members of the Company at the 
ensuing AGM.

Further, the report of the Statutory Auditors along with notes 
to Schedules is enclosed to this Report. The observations 
made in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and 
therefore do not call for any further comments.

II. Cost Auditors and Cost Audit report:

In view of the provisions of Section 148 and all other 
applicable provisions of the Act read with the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, R. M. Bansal & Co., Cost 
Accountants have been appointed as Cost Auditors to 
conduct the audit of cost records of your Company for the 
FY 2016-17. The remuneration proposed to be paid to them 
requires approval of the shareholders of the Company. In 
view of this, approval for payment of remuneration to Cost 
Auditors is being sought at the ensuing AGM.

III. Secretarial audit

In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there 
under, M/s. Ranjeet Verma & Associates, Practicing Company 
Secretaries have been appointed as Secretarial Auditors 
of the Company. The report of the Secretarial Auditors is 
enclosed as Annexure-2 to this Report. The report is self-
explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

IV. Internal Auditors

M/s Rajiv S Agarwal & Co. Chartered Accountants performs 
the duties of internal auditors of the company and their report 
is reviewed by the audit committee from time to time.

19. DISCLOSURES

i. Details of Board meetings

During the year, 11 (eleven) Board meetings were held 
and the details of which are provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report.

ii. Composition of Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee comprises 3 (three) Members all of 
which are Independent Directors. During the year, 6 (six) 
Audit Committee meetings were held and the details of 
which are provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

Listing Regulations

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has, 
by its notification dated 2nd September, 2015, issued 
the (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 with an aim to consolidate and streamline 
the provisions of the Listing Regulations for different 
segments of capital markets to ensure better enforceability. 
The Regulations became effective from 1st December, 2015 
and have replaced the Listing Agreements. Accordingly, 
all listed entities were required to enter into the Listing 
Agreement within 6 (six) months from the effective date. 
The Company has entered into Listing Agreement with BSE 
Limited during the month of January, 2016. Pursuant to the 
Listing Regulations, the following policies were approved 
and adopted by the Board:

(i) Policy on determination of Materiality for disclosures of 
events or information.

(ii) Policy for preservation of documents, to classify 
documents in two categories, viz. documents which need to 
be preserved permanently and documents which need to be 
preserved for not less than 8 years after completion of the 
relevant transactions.

(iii) Archival Policy, to determine the period, for which 
information is required to be disclosed on the Company’s 
website. Policy on Materiality and Archival Policy are also 
available on the website of the Company under ‘Investor 
Relations’ section.

Particulars of Employees

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with 
Rule, 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of 
employees of the Company is as follows:

The company has One Executive Director and no sitting 
fees have been paid to any director during the year. Details 
enclosed as Annexure-4 to this Report

20. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY 
THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

A detailed note on ongoing litigations/court orders has been 
provided in the notes to account.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Act and Rule 12(1) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, 
extract of annual return in Form MGT 9 is enclosed as 
Annexure -3 to this Report.
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extended by the Company’s Unions and all the employees 
for their dedicated service.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The statements contained in the Board’s Report and 
Management Discussion and Analysis contain certain 
statements relating to the future and therefore are forward 
looking within the meaning of applicable securities, laws and 
regulations.

Various factors such as economic conditions, changes in 
government regulations, tax regime, other statues, market 
forces and other associated and incidental factors may 
however lead to variation in actual results.

By order of the Board

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	 Dwarka Das Lakhotia	 Prem Narain Varshney
	 Director	 Managing Director
	 DIN: 00012380	 DIN: 00012709
New Delhi						    
24th August, 2016

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD 
MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 
WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted the Code of 
Conduct for its employees including the Managing Director 
and the Whole-time Directors. In addition, the Company 
has adopted the Code of Conduct for the Non-Executive 
Directors. Both these Codes are available on the Company’s 
website.

I confirm that the Company has in respect of the Financial 
Year ended March 31, 2016, received from the Senior 
Management Team of the Company and the Members of 
the Board, a declaration of compliance with the Code of 
Conduct as applicable to them.

For the purpose of this declaration, Senior Management 
Team means the Members of the Management one level 
below the Managing Director as on March 31, 2016
.

Sd/- 
Prem Narain Varshney

	 Managing Director 
	 DIN: 00012709
New Delhi	
August 24, 2016

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT:

ANNEXURE-1

I. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY     

A.	 Energy Conservation measures taken 

	 i.	 All the staff members are strictly instructed to switch  
		 off all the lights and equipments after office hours  
		 when not in use.

	 ii.	 Optimization of capacity utilization thus reducing  
		 specific consumption of energy.

	 iii.	 Strict control of quality input for saving electricity  
		 consumption.

	 iv.	 Minimization of handling loss.

(B)	 Additional Investment and proposals, if any, being 
implemented for reduction of consumption of energy.

	 The company is studying the feasibility of adding variable 
frequency drives for various applications wherever 
suitable, to bring down the energy consumption subject 
to techno-commercial viability of the proposal.

(C)	 The impact of above (a) and (b) for reduction of 
energy consumption and consequent impact on cost of 
production of goods.

(D)	 The per ton power consumption has been as under:

Form-A 
Disclosure of particulars with respect to 
conservation of energy.

S. 
No. PARTUCULARS

A. Power and Fuel 
Consumption

Current Year Previous year

1. ELECTRICITY
Ghaziabad Unit
(a) Purchase Units 
(i) Rolling Mill Unit (A-3)

(ii) SMS Unit (C-4)

19879110

22696461

12299523 

16814720
(b) Total Amount (In Rs.)
(i) Rolling Mill Unit (A-3)

(ii) SMS Unit (C-4)

159358053

182739641

102704729

130145067
(c) Rate / Unit
(i )Rolling Mill Unit (A-3)

(ii) SMS Unit (C-4)

8.02

8.05

8.35

7.74
Odisha Unit
(a) Purchase Units (KWH) - -
(b) Total Amount (In Rs.) - -
(c) Rate / Unit - -
Own Generation - -

2. GAS & FUELS
(a) Natural Gas / Furnace 
Oil (SCM / Litre)

6299507 1784165

(b) Natural Gas Rs./ SCM 41.75 42
(c) FO Rs. / Liter 32.65 31.40
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3. OTHER GENERATION NIL NIL
B. CONSUMPTION PER MT 

OF PRODUCTION
Ghaziabad Unit
Electricity (in unit)
(i) Rolling Mill Unit (A-3)

(ii) SMS Unit (C-4)

197 per MT

536  per MT

193 per MT

562 per MT
Natural Gas / FO (SCM / 
Litre)

41.75 42.00

Odisha Unit
Electricity (KWH) per ton 
Billet

- -

Note: Previous year figures have been regrouped / 
rearranged wherever necessary.

(2) 	TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION   
FORM B

Disclosure of Particulars with Respect to Technology 
Absorption

A. Research and Development

The Company is doing in house R&D activities to improve 
operational efficiencies and yield of its products.

B. Technology Absorption, Adaptation & Innovation

(1) Efforts in brief, made towards technology absorption and 
innovation. - The company has always tried to adopt the 
best and latest technologies to manufacture its products. It 
is due to this very reason that over the years the company 
has witnessed very positive response and quick adaptation 
of the various products and grades of steel that have been 
manufactured from time to time. For instance, the company 
was amongst the first in the country to adopt the TOR® 
technology in the 1970s and was again amongst the first to 
make a quick transformation to THERMEX® technology for 
manufacturing TMT bars at its Ghaziabad plant.

In the area of special steel as well, the company has installed 
the most modern and suitable technology for manufacturing 
of high quality stainless steel products in the steel melting 
shop at Ghaziabad and has also installed the most modern 
mono-block to finish superior quality of wire rods. In addition 
to the above, the company has also continuously upgraded 
and modernized the rolling mills to adhere to the international 
standards.

III.   FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO 

1.	 Activities relating to exports, initiatives taken to increase  
	 exports, development of new Export market for products  
	 and services and export plans.  
	 The Company is in continuous process to promote its  
	 products in other countries to increase its market share.  
	 The Company promptly responds to the enquiry/  
	 information received from the prospective buyers.

2.	 Total Foreign Exchange used and earned: 

	 Expenditure in Foreign Currency	 :	 Rs. 221732254

	 FOB Value of exports	 :	 Rs.NIL

Annexure-2

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

(FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016)

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

RATHI STEEL AND POWER LIMITED

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance 
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by RATHI STEEL AND POWER 
LIMITED(“the Company’’). Secretarial Audit was conducted 
in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the RATHI STEEL AND POWER 
LIMITED (“the Company’’)books,  papers,  minute  books,  
forms and returns field  and other records maintained by the 
company, and also the information provided by the Company, 
its  officers, agents and  authorized representatives during 
the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby  report that in our 
opinion, the company has, during   the audit period covering 
the financial year ended on  March 31, 2016  complied with 
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 
Company has proper Board-processes  and compliance- 
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject 
to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, 
and returns  field and other records maintained by RATHI 
STEEL AND POWER LIMITED (“the Company’’)  for the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2016  according to the 
provisions of:

i.	 The Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies Act,1956 
(to the extent applicable) (the Act) and the rules made there 
under;

ii.	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) 
and the rules made there under;

iii.	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and 
Bye-laws framed there under;

iv.	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules 
and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowing;

As per the records examine by us we have not found any 
instance of foreign exchange transaction which falls under 
FDI , ODI and ECB.

v.	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’):-
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(a)	The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial 
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b)	The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition 
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

(c)	The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d)	The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee 
Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(e)	The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and 
Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars 
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and Dealing with client;

(g)	The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of 
Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

(h)	The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of 
Securities) Regulations, 1998;

  vi.	 Other laws especially applicable to the company-

	 1.	 Factories Act, 1948

	 2.	 Employee’s state insurance Act, 1948, and the  
		 rules made there under,

	 3.	 The Contract Labour (regulation and abolition) act,  
		 1970

	 4.	 Environmental Pollution Act, 1986.

	 5.	 The Electricity Act, 2003

	 6.	 Industrial Dispute Act, 1947

	 7.	 The Child Labour Act, 1970

	 8.	 The water (prevention and control of pollution)  
		 Act 1974 read with water (Prevention and control of  
		 Pollution) Rules, 1975

	 9.	 Environment Protection Act,1986

	 10.	 Air (Prevention and control of pollution) Act, 1981  
		 read with air (Prevention & control of pollution)  
		 Rules, 1982. 

We have also examined the compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the following:

a.	 Secretarial  Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India

b.	 The Listing agreements entered into by the Company 
with the Stock Exchanges.

During the period under review, the company has compiled 
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulation, Guidelines, 
Standards etc. mentioned above

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and 

according to the records and explanation provided to us, we 
have found the following observations:

As per Companies Act, 2013

1.	 Delay in the appointment of women directors:

As per the records examined by us we observe that women 
Director has been appointed after the lapse of prescribed 
time period i.e. on 30th May 2015.

2.	 Non compliance in filing of e-form SH-7:

According to the provision of section 61(1) (a) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, e-form SH-7, required to filed to the 
registrar for the increase in authorized share capital within 
30 days of passing the resolution.

During the period under review we have found that as per 
MCA records paid up share capital (765048590) is exceeding 
the Authorized share capital (650000000), then we examine 
the minutes book and records of the company and leads to 
the conclusion that the company has actually called an EGM 
and approve it authorized share capital but has not yet failed 
e-form SH-7 at MCA.

3.	 Filing of e-forms

During the period under review some of the e-forms have 
been filed with the additional fees as prescribed under 
section 403 of the companies act, 2013.

In respect of other laws specifically applicable to the company, 
we have relied on the information/records produced by the 
company during the course of our audit and reporting is 
limited to that extent.

4.	 The coal block allotted to the company has been 
cancelled by the Supreme Court in the month of September 
2014. A charge sheet was also filed against the company 
and its officials. The matter has been duly reported by the 
company to the exchanges. The case is presently running 
under CBI special court.

We further report

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted 
with proper balance of Executive Directors, tNon-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors.

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors 
that took place during the period under review were carried 
out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

All decisions of the board were unanimous and the same 
was captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there is scope to improve the systems 
and processes in the company and operations of the 
company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Further, we report that there were no instances of:

I. Redemption / buy back of securities

II. Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to 
section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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III. Foreign technical collaborations.

FOR RANJEET VERMA & ASSOCIATES 
COMPANY SECRETARIES

SD/- 
CS RANJEET KUMAR VERMA 
PROPRIETOR 
M.NO- FCS6814 
CP NO- 7463

Date : 09/06/2016 

Appendix A’

To, 

The Members,                                                                                                                                          
Rathi Steel and Power Limited                                                                                                            
Sarita Vihar, New Delhi-110076

My report of June 2016 is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 The Maintenance of the Secretarial records is the 
responsibility of the management of the company. 
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

secretarial records based on my audit.

2.	 I have followed the audit practices and processes 
as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of 
the secretarial records. The verification was done 
on test check basis to ensure that correct facts 
are reflected in the secretarial records. I believe 
that processes and practices, I followed provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

3.	 I have not verified the correctness and 
appropriateness of the financial records and books 
of accounts of the company.

4.	  Wherever required I have obtained the management 
representation about the compliances of laws, 
rules and regulation and occurrence of events etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of corporate 
and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of the management. 
My examination was limited to the verification 
procedures on test check basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an 
assurance as to the future viability of the company 
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the 
company. 
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ANNEXURE -3

FORM NO. MGT 9										        

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on 2016

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014]

I.  REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

I CIN L27109DL1971PLC005905

Ii Registration Date 17/12/1971

Iii Name of the Company RATHI STEEL AND POWER LIMITED

Iv Category/Sub-category of the Company Indian Non-Government Company

V Address of the Registered office & contact 
details

Chauhan Market, Madanpur Khadar, Near Local, Shopping Complex, 
Pocket-D & E, Sarita Vihar,New Delhi-110076

Vi Whether listed company YES

Vii Name , Address & contact details of the 
Registrar  & Transfer Agent, if any.

“M/s. Mas Services Limited (Unit Rathi Steel).  
T-34, Second Floor, Okhla Ind. Area, Phase-II,New Delhi- 110020,”

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S. No. Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the 
Product/service

%  to total turnover of 
the company

1 Steel 24105 99.90%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl.  
No.

Name and address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary/ 
Associate

“% of 
shares 
held”

“Applicable 
Section”

1 N.A.

IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN 

(Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning  
of the year 

[As on 1- April 2015]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 
[ As on 31-March 2016]

% change 
during the 

year
Physical Total % of 

Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Shares

  

A. Promoters           
           
(1) Indian           
a) Individual/HUF 8,245,219  8,245,219 26.34% 8,245,219 0 8245219 26.34% 0.00%  
b) Central Govt. or 
State Govt.

 

c) Bodies Corporates 7,867,695  7,867,695 25.13% 7,867,695  7,867,695 25.13% 0.00%  
d) Bank/FI           
e) Any other           
           
SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) 16112914  16,112,914 51.47% 16112914 0 16112914 51.47% 0.00%  
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(2) Foreign           
a) NRI- Individuals           
b) Other Individuals           
c) Bodies Corp.           
d) Banks/FI           
e) Any other…           
           
SUB TOTAL (A) (2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
           
Total Shareholding 
of Promoter 
(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2)

 

16112914

 

0

 

16112914

 

51.47%

 

16112914

 

0

 

16112914

 

51.47%

 

0.00%

 

0

           
B. PUBLIC 
SHAREHOLDING

          

           
(1) Institutions           
a) Mutual Funds 686913  686913 2.19% 686,913  686,913 2.19% 0.00%  
b) Banks/FI 2177646  2177646 6.96% 2061435  2061435 6.58% -0.38%  
C) Central govt           
d) State Govt.           
e) Venture Capital 
Fund

          

f) Insurance 
Companies

          

g) FIIS           
h) Foreign Venture           
 Capital Funds           
i) Others (specify)           
           
SUB TOTAL (B)(1): 2864559  2864559 9.15% 2,748,348  2,748,348 8.77% -0.38%  
           
(2) Non Institutions           
a) Bodies corporates           
i) Indian 2027767 51014 2078781 6.64% 0  0 0 -6.64%  
ii) Overseas           
b) Individuals           
i) Individual 
shareholders holding  
nominal share capital 
upto Rs.2 lakhs

5204318 522073 5726391 18.29% 6053808 573087 6626895 21.17% 2.88%  

ii) Individuals 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
in excess of Rs. 2 
lakhs

4044397  4044397 12.92% 3650926  3650926 11.66% -1.26%  

c) NBFC 
REGISTERED WITH 
RBI

    3000  3000 0.01% 0.01%  

Any Other  
(Body corp)

    1674985  1674985 5.35% 5.35%  

Non-resident indian./
OCB

396311  396311 1.27% 410241  410241 1.31% 0.04%  

Clearing Member 84758  84758 0.27% 80802  80802 0.26% -0.01%  
SUB TOTAL (B)(2): 11757551 573087 12330638 39.38% 11873762 573087 12446849 39.76% 0.38%  
           
Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)

14622110 573087 15195197 48.53% 14622110 573087 15,195,197 48.53% 0.00%  
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C. Shares held by 
Custodian for  
GDRs & ADRs

  

           
Grand Total 
(A+B+C)

30735024 573087 31308111 100.00% 30735024 573087 31308111 100% 0.00% 0

(ii) Shareholding of Promoter
SN Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of 

the year
Shareholding at the end of the year % change in 

shareholding 
during the 

year

No. of 
Shares

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

1 Mr. UDIT RATHI UR 740231 2.36% 2.36% 740231 2.36% 2.36% 0.00%

2 Mr. PRADEEP KUMAR RATHI 7504988 23.97% 23.97% 7,504,988 23.97% 23.97% 0.00%

3 M/s ARCHIT SECURITIES PVT LTD 4035223 12.89% 12.89% 4035223 12.89% 12.89% 0.00%

4 M/s DBG LEASING AND HOUSING 
LIMITED

3832472 12.24% 12.24% 3832472 12.24% 12.24% 0.00%

										        

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
SN Particulars Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning of 

the year
Cumulative Shareholding during 

the year

No. of shares % of total 
shares

No. of shares % of total 
shares

At the beginning of the year No changes during the year 0.00% 0.00%

Changes during the year No changes during the year 0.00% 0.00%

At the end of the year No changes during the year 0.00% 0.00%

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders

(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):							     

S. 
No.

For each of the Top 10 shareholders Date Reason Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of  
shares

% of total 
shares

No. of shares % of total 
shares

1 SYNDICATE BANK

At the beginning of the year  1,091,536 3.49% 1,091,536 3.49%

Changes during the year                                       
-   

0.00%                                            
-   

0.00%

At the end of the year  1,091,536 3.49%      1,091,536 3.49%

2 ANUPAMA SARDA

At the beginning of the year  901,696 2.88%  901,696 2.88%

Changes during the year - 0.00% - 0.00%

At the end of the year  901,696 2.88%  901,696 2.88%

3 LIC NOMURA MF SPECIAL UNIT SCHEME

At the beginning of the year 686,913 2.19% 686,913 2.19%

Changes during the year - 0.00% - 0.00%

At the end of the year  686,913 2.19%  686,913 2.19%
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4 MODERN FERRO ALLOYS PRIVATE LIMITED

At the beginning of the year   500,000 1.60%           500,000 1.60%

Changes during the year - 0.00% - 0.00%

At the end of the year   500,000 1.60%   500,000 1.60%

5 PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK

At the beginning of the year  486,676 1.55%  486,676 1.55%

Changes during the year - 0.00% - 0.00%

At the end of the year  486,676 1.55%  486,676 1.55%

6 ESKAY ENCLAVE PRIVATE LIMITED

At the beginning of the year 430,300 1.37% 430,300 1.37%

Changes during the year - - - -

At the end of the year 430,300 1.37% 430,300 1.37%

7 ANIRUDH RATHI

At the beginning of the year  427,482 1.37%  427,482 1.37%

Changes during the year - 0.00% - 0.00%

At the end of the year  427,482 1.37%  427,482 1.37%

8 DENA BANK - INVESTMENT

At the beginning of the year  369,161 1.18%  369,161 1.18%

Changes during the year - 0.00% - 0.00%

At the end of the year  369,161 1.18%  369,161 1.18%

9 EXIM SCRIPT DEALERS PVT. LTD

At the beginning of the year 601473 1.92% 601473 1.92%

Changes during the year Various 
Dates

Transfer 331022 1.06% 331022 1.06%

At the end of the year 270451 0.86% 270451 0.86%

10 ASISH AGRAWAL

At the beginning of the year  225,041 0.72%  225,041 0.72%

Changes during the year - 0.00% - 0.00%

At the end of the year  225,041 0.72%  225,041 0.72%

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

S.  
No. 

Shareholding of each Directors and each Key 
Managerial Personnel

Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of shares % of total 
shares

No. of shares % of total 
shares

1 Mr. UDIT RATHI UR

At the beginning of the year  740,231 2.36%  740,231 2.36%

Changes during the year  -   0.00%  -   0.00%

At the end of the year  740,231 2.36%  740,231 2.36%
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2 Mr. PRADEEP KUMAR RATHI 

At the beginning of the year  7,504,988 23.97%  7,504,988 23.97%

Changes during the year  -   0.00%  -   0.00%

At the end of the year  7,504,988 23.97%  7,504,988 23.97%

V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

(Amt. Rs./Lacs)

Particulars Secured Loans 
excluding deposits Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i)   Principal Amount 54736.50 31.82 0 54768.32 

ii)  Interest due but not paid  753.52 0 0  753.52

iii)  Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0  0

Total (i+ii+iii)                55490.02                                31.82   0              55490.02   

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

* Addition  5795.90  0  0  5795.90

* Reduction  8.68 0  0 8.68 

Net Change 5787.22 0 0 5787.22

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 59505.22 31.82   59537.04

ii) Interest due but not paid 1772.02   1772.02 

iii) Interest accrued but not due     

Total (i+ii+iii)                61277.24        31.82                               0   61309.06   

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

S.  
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total 
Amount

Name PRADEEP KUMAR 
RATHI

PREM NARAIN 
VARSHNEY

(Rs/Lac)

Designation Managing director Whole-time director

1 Gross salary 2880000 227490 31 .07

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the  
Income-tax Act, 1961

-

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 
1961

-

2 Stock Option -

3 Sweat Equity -

4 Commission -

-  as % of profit -

-  others, specify -

5 Others, please specify -

Total (A) 2880000 227490 31.07

Ceiling as per the Act -
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-

B. Remuneration to other Directors

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total 
Amount

DWARKA DAS LAKHOTIA SHREE KUMAR DAGA (Rs/Lac)

1 Independent Directors

Fee for attending board committee 
meetings

 -   

Commission  -   

Others, please specify  -   

Total (1)  -    -    -    -   

2 Other Non-Executive Directors  -   

Fee for attending board committee 
meetings

 -   

Commission  -   

Others, please specify  -   

Total (2)  -    -    -    -   

Total (B)=(1+2)  -    -    -    -   

Total Managerial Remuneration -

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Key Managerial Personnel Total Amount

 Name CEO CFO CS (Rs/Lac)

 Designation UDIT RATHI * ANIL 
KUMAR 
GUPTA

** Shyam S 
Bageshara

 Sakshi 
Sethi

1 Gross salary  28,80,000 52230  297061 174048 34.03

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 
of the Income-tax Act, 1961

              -   

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961               -   

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- 
tax Act, 1961

              -   

2 Stock Option    -

3 Sweat Equity    -

4 Commission     -

-  as % of profit    

-  others, specify     

5 Others, please specify                -   

 Total  28,80,000 52,230 29,7061 17,4048 34.03

* Resigned on 01st July, 2015

** Appointed on 01st July, 2015

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the Companies Act Brief 
Description

Details of 
Penalty / 

Punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed

Authority 
[RD / 
NCLT/ 

COURT]

Appeal 
made, if 
any (give 
Details)

A. COMPANY
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Penalty

 

NA     

Punishment

 

     

Compounding

 

     

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

 

NA     

Punishment

 

     

Compounding

 

     

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

 

NA     

Punishment

 

     

Compounding
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Annexure 4

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION

The  information  required  under  Section  197  of  the Act 
and the Rules made there-under, in respect of employees of 
the Company, is follows:

(a)  The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the 
median remuneration of the employee of the Company 
for the financial year: 

Directors Ratio to median 
Remuneration

Sh. Pradeep Kumar Rathi 28.18
Sh. Prem Narain Varshney 2.12
Sh. Shree Kumar Daga NIL
Sh. Dwarka Das Lakhotia NIL
Ms. Akanksha Garg N.A.

(b)  The percentage increase in remuneration of each 
Director, Chief Executive officer, Chief Financial officer, 
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial 
year;

Name of person % increase in remuneration
Sh. Pradeep Kumar Rathi Nil
Sh. Prem Narain Varshney 5%
Sh. Udit Rathi Nil
Sh. Shyam S Bageshra N.A. (Being employed part 

of the year)
Ms. Sakshi Sethi N.A. (Being employed part 

of the year)

c) The percentage increase in the median remuneration 
of employees in the financial year – 5%

(d) The  number  of  permanent  employees  on  the rolls 
of company: As on 31.03.2016 employees are 156

(e) The explanation on the relationship between average 
increase in remuneration and company performance: 
On an average, employees received an increase of 5%. The 
Increase in remuneration is in line with the market trends 
and company’s performance.

In order to ensure that remuneration reflects company   
performance, the performance   pay is linked to organization 
performance apart from an individual’s performance.

(f)  Comparison of the remuneration of the Key 
Managerial Personnel against the Performance of the 
company:

Particulars Rs/Lac
Remuneration of Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMP)

65.11

Revenue from operations 59735
Remuneration (as % of revenue) 0.11%

Profit before tax (PBT) (9105.53)
Remuneration (as % of PBT) N.A.

(G) Variation  in  the  market  capitalisation  of  the 
Company, price earnings ratio as at the closing date of 
the current financial year and previous financial  year  
and  percentage  increase  over decrease in the market 
quotations of the shares of the Company in comparison 
to the rate at which  the  Company  came  out with  the  
last public offer in case of listed companies and in case  
of  unlisted  companies,  the  variations  in   the  net  
worth  of  the  Company  as  at  the  close of   the   current   
financial   year   and   previous financial year;

Particulars Unit As at 31 
March 
2016

As at 31 
March 
2015

Variation 
(%)

Closing rate of share 
at BSE

Rs. 3.15 3.30 (4.55%)

EPS Rs. (29.08) (26.32) (10.49%)

Market Capitalisation Rs./lac 986.21 1033.17 (4.55%)

Price Earning Ratio Ratio N.A. N.A. N.A.

(H) Average percentile increase already made in the 
salaries of employees other than managerial personnel 
in the last financial year and its comparison with 
percentile increase in the managerial remuneration 
and justification there of and point out if there are 
any exceptional circumstances for increase in the 
managerial remuneration.

The average increase in salaries of the eligible employees in 
2015-16 was about 5%which is in line with  increase  in  the  
salary  of  Whole Time Director of the Company.

(i) Comparison of remuneration of each of the Key 
Managerial Personnel against the performance of the 
Company

Particulars MD WT 
Director

C.S. CEO CFO

Rs/lac Rs/lac Rs/lac Rs/lac Rs/lac

Remuneration 28.80 2.27 1.74 28.80 3.49

Revenue 59735

Remuneration 
(as% revenue)

0.05% 0.00% 0.00% 0.05% 0.01%

Profits before  
tax (PBT)

(9105.53)

Remuneration 
(as % of PBT)

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

(j) The key parameters for any variable component of 
remuneration availed by the directors: NIL

(k) The  Ratio  of  the  Remuneration  of  the  highest paid 
Director to that of Employees who are not Directors  but  
receive  Remuneration  in  excess of  the  highest  paid  
Director  during  the  year: NIL

(l) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the 
remuneration policy of the company
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The company’s remuneration policy is driven by the success 
and performance of the individual employees and the 
Company. Individual performance pay is determined by 
business performance and the performance of the individuals 
measured through the annual appraisal process. The 
Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration 
policy of the company.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Industry Structure and Development

India is the world’s third-largest producer of crude steel 
(up from eighth in 2003) and is expected to become the 
second-largest producer by 2016. The growth in the Indian 
steel sector has been driven by domestic availability of 
raw materials such as iron ore and cost-effective labour. 
Consequently, the steel sector has been a major contributor 
to India’s manufacturing output.

The Indian steel industry is very modern with state-of-the-art 
steel mills. It has always strived for continuous modernisation 
and up-gradation of older plants and higher energy efficiency 
levels.

Market Size

India’s crude steel production grew by 4.9 per cent year-
on-year to at 8 Million Tonnes (MT) in May 2016. Total steel 
production in the country is expected to increase by 7 per 
cent in 2016.

Opportunities and Threats

The world market for steel will reach $1.3 trillion in 2015, 
with production levels to reach 1,694.73 million tonnes whilst 
consumption will reach 1,545.50 million tonnes. The market 
has been declining over the past few years as a result of the 
large oversupply of steel that pressured prices downwards. 
The global recession that hit the commodities sector hard 
also contributed to the shrinking growth. As a result, the 
steel market is expected to grow at a slow rate in the first 
half of the forecast period (2015-2020) before accelerating 
at a higher rate in the second half of the forecast period 
(2020-2025).

Future Outlook 

The economic environment facing the steel industry 
continues to be challenging with China’s slowdown impacting 
globally across a range of indicators contributing to volatility 
in financial markets, sluggish growth in global trade and low 
oil and other commodity prices. The global steel market 
is suffering from insufficient investment expenditure and 
continued weakness in the manufacturing sector. In 2016, 
while we are forecasting another year of contraction in steel 
demand in China, slow but steady growth in some other key 
regions including NAFTA and EU is expected. Growth for 
steel demand in all markets except China is expected in 
2017.

“to hive off both the units to unlock shareholder’s value 
and arrive at a long term sustainable solution – Company 
is working out various options in consultations with 
lenders”

Planning to increase the Capacity of stainless steel 

products at Ghaziabad Unit

Grow in the emerging economy: In India, we endeavour to 
position ourselves to leverage growth, from an emerging 
economy and are always looking to expand our Steel 
capacity at regular intervals. The Company is considering 
to make new investments at Ghaziabad Unit to increase the 
Capacity of Special Products.

Risk & Concerns

The Company on regular basis reviews its Risk Management 
Policy and takes proactive steps to safeguard and minimize 
any adversity related to the Market, Technology, People, 
Environment/Regulatory, Financial and Opportunity Risks. 
Wherever necessary, the Company takes adequate 
insurance coverage of its assets for safeguarding from 
unforeseen risks.

Internal Control System and their adequacy

The Company has adequate internal control system and well 
laid-down policies and procedures for all its operations and 
financial functions. The procedures are aligned to provide 
assurance for maintaining proper accounting controls, 
monitoring efficient and proper usage of all its assets and 
reliability of financial and operational reports. The internal 
control system is ably supported by the Internal Audit 
Department which carries out extensive audit of various 
functions throughout the Company. The Company’s Board 
has an Audit Committee which comprises of three members, 
all of whom are Independent Directors. The Audit Committee 
reviews significant findings of the internal audit.

Financial Performance

During the year under review, the Company has achieved 
revenue from operation of Rs. 59734.73 lacs against 
previous year of Rs. 66882.35 Lacs. The Company has 
incurred loss of Rs. 9105.53 lacs against previous year loss 
of Rs. 8239.23 lacs. Company expects to do better if there is 
an improvement in overall industrial scenario.

Human Resources and Industrial Relation 

The Company takes pride in the commitment, competence 
and dedication shown by its employees in all areas of 
business. Various Human Resource initiatives are taken 
to align the HR Policies to the growing requirements of the 
business. 

The Company has a structured induction process and 
management development programmes to upgrade skills 
of managers. Technical and safety training programmes are 
given periodically to workers. 

Industrial relations in the organization continued to be cordial 
during the year under review. 

Corporate Governance Report 

THE COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

The Company believes that good Corporate Governance 
is essential for achieving long-term corporate goals and to 
enhance stakeholders’ value. In this pursuit, the Company’s 
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Corporate Governance philosophy is to ensure fairness, 
transparency and integrity of the management, in order to 
protect the interests of all its stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

i)	 Composition

 The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company 
is in conformity with the Listing Regulations and the 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). As on 31st March, 2016, the 
Board comprised five Directors, out of which three are Non- 
Executive Directors and one Managing Director. Out of three 
Non-Executive Directors, two (i.e. 66.66%) are Independent 
Directors (including one woman Independent Director).

None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more 
than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5 
Committees across all the public companies in which he/
she is a Director. All the Directors have made the requisite 
disclosures regarding committee positions held by them in 
other companies. None of the Directors of the Company is 
related to each other.

Details of Directors, categories and attendance records are 
as under-

Name/
Designation 
of Directors

Executive/ 
Non 

Executive/ 
Independent

No. of Position held 
in other companies

No. of 
Board 

Meetings 
Attended

Attendance 
at Last 
AGMBoard 

#
Committee

Mr. Pradeep 
Kumar Rathi* 
Managing 
Director 

ED (P) NIL Nil 11 No

Mr. Prem 
Narain 
Varshney

ED 1 Nil 11 Yes

Mr. Dwarka 
Das Lakhotia          

NED (I) Nil Nil 11 No

Mr. Shree 
Kumar Daga

NED (I) 1 Nil 11 Yes

Ms Akanksha 
Garg**

NED Nil Nil 8 No

# excludes directorship in Private Limited Company, Foreign 
Companies and Section 8 Companies

*Resigned w.e.f 28th July, 2016

**Appointed as an additional Director w.e.f 30th May,2015  

ED (P) – Executive Director (Promoter)

NED    - Non-Executive Director             

ED       -Executive Director

NED (I) - Non-Executive Director (Independent)  

ii) 	 Eleven Board Meetings were held during the year and 
the gap between two meetings did not exceed one 
hundred and twenty days. The dates on which the said 
meetings were held:

	 April 10, 2015, May 4, 2015, May 30, 2015, June 15, 
2015, July 25, 2015,  August 14, 2015, September 
22, 2015, September 30, 2015, November 14, 2015, 
February13, 2016, March 31, 2016

iii)	 During the year 2015-16, information as mentioned in 
Schedule II Part A of the SEBI Listing Regulations, has 
been placed before the Board for its consideration.

iv) The terms and conditions of appointment of the 
Independent Directors are disclosed on the website of 
the Company.

v)	 During the year, one meetings of the Independent 
Directors were held on  March 31, 2016. The Independent 
Directors, inter-alia, reviewed the performance of non-
independent directors, Chairman of the Company and 
the Board as a whole.

vi)	 The Board periodically reviews the compliance reports 
of all laws applicable to the Company, prepared by the 
Company.

vii)	 The details of the familiarisation programme of the 
Independent Directors are available on the website of 
the Company.

Committees of the Board

A. Audit committee

i. The audit committee of the Company is constituted in line 
with the provisions of Regulation 18 of

SEBI Listing Regulations, read with Section 177 of the Act. 

ii. The terms of reference of the audit committee are broadly 
as under:

•	 Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process 
and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure 
that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and 
credible;

•	  Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and 
terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

•	 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other 
services rendered by the statutory auditors;

•	 Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial 
statements and auditors’ report thereon before 
submission to the board for approval.

•	 Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly 
financial statements before submission to the board for 
approval; 

•	 Review and monitor the auditors’ independence and 
performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

•	 Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ 
report thereon;

•	 The audit committee shall review the information 
required as per SEBI Listing Regulations.

iii. The audit committee invites such of the executives, as it 
considers appropriate (particularly the head of the finance 
function), representatives of the statutory auditors and 
representatives of the internal auditors to be present at its 
meetings. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to 
the Audit Committee.
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iv. The previous Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of 
the Company was held on September 30, 2015 and was 
attended by Mr. Shree Kumar Daga, Chairman of the audit 
committee.

The composition of the Audit Committee and the details of 
meetings attended by the Directors are given below

Sr. 
No.

Name Category No. of 
Meetings 
attended

1. Mr. Shree Kumar Daga NED (I) 6
2. Mr. Dwarka Das Lakhotia NED (I) 6
3. Mr. Prem Narain 

Varshney
ED 6

NED (I) - Non-Executive Director (Independent)

ED - Executive Director

The meetings of Audit Committee are also attended by 
Managing Director, CFO, Statutory Auditors and Internal 
Auditors as special invitees.

During the year 2015-16, six Audit Committee Meetings 
were held on 30th  May, 2015, 15th  June, 2015, 14th August 
, 2015, 30th September, 2015, 14th November, 2015 and 
13th February, 2016 The necessary quorum was present at 
the meetings.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The nomination and remuneration committee of the Company 
is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 19 of 
SEBI Listing Regulations, read with Section 178 of the Act.

i) Terms of reference :

This Committee shall identify the persons, who are qualified 
to become Directors of the Company / who may be appointed 
in Senior Management in accordance with the criteria 
laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment 
and removal and also shall carry out evaluation of every 
director’s performance. Committee shall also formulate the 
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, 
independent of the Directors and recommend to the Board 
a Policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other employees.

ii) Composition :

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the 
Company consists of 3 Non-Executive and Independent 
Directors.

iii) No. of Meetings held during the year :

During the year the Committee had 1 meeting i.e. on 15th 
January, 2016.

iv) Composition, name of Members and attendance 
during the year :

Name of the Director Position No. of 
Meetings 
held

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended

Mr. Shree Kumar Daga Chairman 1 1
Mr.Dwarka Das Lakhotia Member 1 1
Ms Akanksha Garg** Member 1 1
Mr. P. N. Varshney* Member -- --

*resigned w.e.f. 30th May, 2015
**appointed w.e.f. 30th May, 2015
Company Secretary was the Compliance Officer during the 
year under review. She performed the functions of monitoring 
the complaints received vis-à-vis share transfer and other 
related processes and reported them to the Board. 

She also carried out his responsibility as liaison officer 
with the investors and regulatory authorities, such as 
SEBI, Stock Exchanges, Registrar of Companies, R.B.I. in 
respect of implementing laws, rules and regulations, and 
directives of such authorities concerning investor service 
and complaints.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The stakeholders’ relationship committee is constituted in 
line with the provisions of Regulation 20 of SEBI Listing 
Regulations read with section 178 of the Act..The Committee 
performs following functions:

	 •	 Transfer/Transmission of shares

	 •	  Issue of Duplicate Share Certificates.

	 •	 Review of Share dematerialization and  
		 rematerialization.

	 •	 Monitoring the expeditious Redressal of Investor 
		 Grievances.

	 •	 Monitoring the performance of company’s Registrar  
		 & Transfer Agent.

	 •	 All other matters related to the shares.

During 2015-16 the committee was chaired by Mr. Shree 
Kumar Daga. At present the committee comprises of two 
Non-Executive Directors and one Executive director. One 
meetings were held on 31st March, 2016

Risk Management Committee

The risk management committee of the Company is 
constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 21 of 
SEBI Listing Regulations. The board of the Company has 
formed a risk management committee to frame, implement 
and monitor the risk management plan for the Company. The 
committee is responsible for reviewing the risk management 
plan and ensuring its effectiveness. Major risks identified by 
the businesses and functions are systematically addressed 
through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

The Risk Management Committee comprises of Mr. Prem 
Narain Varshney, Whole time Director who is the Chairman 
of the Committee and other members viz. Mr. Shree Kumar 
Daga, Director and Mr. Dwarka Das Lakhotia, Director. 
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the 
Committee.
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PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for 
Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading 
in securities by the Directors and designated employees of 
the Company.

Disclosures

The company has always ensured fair code of conduct and 
maintained transparency. There were no instances of non-
compliance by the company, penalties, strictures imposed 
on the company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory 
authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during 
the last three years.

In accordance with requirement of Companies Act as well as 
listing agreement a vigil mechanism has been adopted by 
the board of directors and accordingly a whistle blower policy 
has been formulated with a view to provide a mechanism for 
employees of the company to approach Internal Auditor or 
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company to report 
any grievance. A link to such policy is also provided in the 
website of the company.

Compliances, rules & regulations as laid down by various 
statutory authorities has always been observed by the 
company since such change over both in letter as well as 
in spirit.

The Board has obtained certificates/disclosures from key 
management personnel confirming they do not have any 
material financial and commercial interest in transactions 
with the company at large.

SHAREHOLDERS

i)  Means of Communication 

Full and complete disclosure of information regarding 
the Company’s financial situation and performance is an 
important part of the Company’s Corporate Governance 
ethics. The Company has demonstrated this commitment by 
sending its Shareholders a full version of its Annual Report.

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual results of the Company 
are published in newspapers in India which include “The 
Pioneer” (English) and “Pioneer” (Hindi language) both Delhi 
editions. The results are also displayed on the Company’s 
website.

Website: the company’s website www.rathisteelandpower.
com contains a separate dedicated section “Investor” where 
shareholders information is available. The annual report 
of the company is also available on the website in a user-
friendly and download form.

ii) Compliance Officer
Company Secretary is the compliance officer for complying 
with requirement of the Securities Laws and the Listing 
Agreements with the Stock Exchange. 	

iii) Insider Trading
In compliance with the SEBI regulations on prevention of 
insider trading, the Company has a Code on Insider Trading 
for its Directors, Management and designated Executives. 

The Code lays down guidelines, which advise them on 
procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made, 
while dealing in securities of the Company. Mr. Shyam S 
Bageshara, Chief Finance Officer (CFO) is the Compliance 
Officer for complying with the said code.

iv) SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES):

The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web 
based complaints redress system. The salient features of this 
system are: Centralised database of all complaints, online 
upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by the concerned 
companies and online viewing by investors of actions taken 
on the complaint and its current status.

v) General Body Meetings

Details of location, time and date of last three Annual General 
Meetings of the Company were held:-

Year Venue of Meeting Date & 
Time

Special 
Resolution 
Passed

2014-15 The Little Theater 
Group, Copernicus 
Marg, New Delhi- 
110001

30th 
September, 
2015, 10.30 
A.M

Yes

2013-14 Nanee Suites, Plot No. 
49, Pocket – I, Jasola, 
New Delhi – 110025

30th 
September, 
2014, 10.00 
A.M

Yes

2012-13 KDM Hotels & Resorts 
Pvt. Ltd (BULBUL) A-4, 
Mohan Cooperative 
industrial Estates 
Mathura Road New 
Delhi- 110044

30th 
September, 
2013, 10.00 
A.M

Yes

No Special Resolution was passed by the Company last year 
through Postal Ballot. None of the businesses proposed to 
be transacted at the ensuing AGM require passing a Special 
Resolution through Postal Ballot.

10.  GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
i) Annual General Meeting:  
	 Date	 :	 30th September, 2016		

	Day		 : 	 Friday
	 Time	 :  	 11.00 A.M.
	 Venue	 : 	 The Little Theater Group,
					    Copernicus Marg, New Delhi- 	

				   110001
ii) Financial Calendar (tentative):

Board Meeting to take on record 
Results for the

Schedule

* Quarter ending 30th June, 2016                           On or before Aug 14, 2016

* Quarter ending 30th 
September, 2016                      

On or before Nov 14, 2016

* Quarter ending 31st December, 
2016

On or before Feb 14, 2017

* Quarter ending 31st March, 
2017

On or before May 30, 2017
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iii) Book Closure Date   :	 24th September, 2016 to 30th   
				   September, 2016

					    (Both days inclusive)

iv) Listing on Stock Exchanges:

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the following 
two Stock Exchanges:-	

Name & Address of  the Stock Exchanges Stock Code
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. 
Floor 25, P J Towers, 
Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001

504903

v) Stock Market Data:

The Equity Shares of the Company are traded at the Bombay 
Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) only. The performance of 
the Equity Shares of the Company in comparison to BSE 
Sensex is given here under:-

Month Share Prices BSE Sensex
                  High Low High Low
April, 2015 5.22          3.59 29,094.61  26,897.54
May, 2015 5.17 3.70 28,071.16 26,423.99
June, 2015 4.55          3.11 27,968.75 26,307.07
July, 2015 4.30          3.41 28,578.33 27,416.39
August, 2015 4.53          2.79 28,417.59 25,298.42
September, 2015 3.30          2.51 26,471.82 24,833.54
October, 2015 3.84          2.66 27,618.14 26,168.71
November, 2015 4.41          2.97     26,824.30 25,451.42
December, 2015 5.39          3.22 26,256.42 24,867.73
January, 2016 7.22          4.15 26,197.27 23,839.76
February, 2016 4.80          3.20 22,494.61 23,002.00
March, 2016 4.15          4.15 25,479.62 23,133.18

   

Source: www.bseindia.com

vi)	 Registrar and Share Transfer Agents:

M/s. Mas Services Limited has been appointed as the 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents for the equity shares of 
the Company in physical and electronic form. Shareholders/
Investors can direct all correspondence with regard to share 
transfer, transmission and change of address etc. at their 
following address:-

M/s. Mas Services Limited (Unit Rathi Steel).  
T-34, Second Floor, 
Okhla Ind. Area, Phase-II,      
New Delhi- 110020, 
Ph: 011-26387281-82-83 
Fax No. 011-26387384 
Email: info@masserv.com          

vii)	 Share Transfer System:

M/s. Mas Services Limited Committee of the Company. The 
meeting of Share Transfer Committee is held at least once 
in a fortnight. All the physical share certificates are sent to 
the transferees subsequent to transfer within the prescribed 

period.

viii)	Status of Complaints/queries and their redressal as 
on March 31, 2016:-

During the year 2015-16, the Company had not received 
any complaints. As on date, no complaints are pending 
other than those, which are under litigation, disputes or court 
orders. 

ix)	 Pending Share Transfers:

No Share transfers were pending as on March 31, 2016.

x)	 Dematerialization of Shares :

The Company has entered into an agreement with NSDL 
and CDSL for dematerialization of shares. As on March 
31, 2016, a total of 30736528 Equity Shares representing 
98.17% of the total paid-up capital of the Company have 
been dematerialized. Members are advised to get their 
shares converted into demat mode. The shares of the 
Company can be traded in demat mode only.
Under the Depository System, the International Securities 
Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to the Company’s 
shares is INE336C01016

xi)	 Distribution of Shareholding:
The distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2016 was 
as under:-

Range of 
holding

Shareholders 
Number 

% No. of 
Shares

%

1 to 5000 11517 80.96% 1778191 5.68%
5001 to 10000 1436 10.09% 1175366 3.75%
10001 to 20000 625 4.39% 963798 3.08%
20001 to 30000 185 1.30% 475226 1.52%
30001 to 40000 100 0.70% 355859 1.14%
40001 to 50000 99 0.70% 467141 1.49%
50001 to 100000 130 0.91% 965452 3.08%
100001 & above 133 0.93% 25127078 80.26%

Total 14225 100% 31308111 100%

xii)	 Outstanding GDRs/ADRs /Warrants etc:

The Company has no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or 
any convertible instruments as on March 31, 2016.

xiii)	Address for Correspondence:

Chauhan Market, Madanpur Khadar, 
Near Local Shopping Complex, 
Pocket- D & E, Sarita Vihar, 
New Delhi-110076 
Ph: 011- 26991060-62 
Fax: 011-26991063 
Web Site: www.rathisteelandpower.com 
E-mail ID: investors@rathisteelandpower.com

OTHER DISCLOSURES

Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions that were entered into during 
the FY 2015-16 were on arm’s length basis, in the ordinary 
course of business and were in compliance with the applicable 
provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations. There were 
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no materially significant related party transactions made by 
the Company with Promoters, Directors, KMPs or other 
designated persons which may have a potential conflict with 
the interest of the Company at large.

The policy on related party transactions as approved by the 
Board is uploaded on the Company’s website

Statutory Compliance

The Company has complied with the requirements of the 
Stock Exchanges, SEBI and Statutory Authority on all matters 
related to capital markets during the last three years.

Whistleblower Policy and Vigil Mechanism

The Company has adopted a Whistleblower policy and Vigil 
Mechanism to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors, 
employees and other external stakeholders to report their 
concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected 
fraud or violation of the Company’s Conduct or Ethics 
policy. 

The policy provides for adequate safeguards against 
victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and 
also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee. No personnel of the Company has been denied 
access to the Audit Committee.

Accounting Treatment in preparation of Financial 
Statements

The Company has prepared the Financial Statements 
in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the 
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 and the relevant provisions of the Act / Companies Act, 
1956, as applicable.

CEO / CFO Certification

The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer have 
certified to the Board in accordance with Regulation 17 (8) 
read with Part B of Schedule II to the Listing Regulations 
pertaining to CEO / CFO certification for the Financial Year 
ended 31st March, 2016. 

Mandatory Requirements 

The Company has complied with all the mandatory 
requirements of the Listing Regulations relating to Corporate 
Governance.

DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

I, Prem narain Varshney, Managing Director of Rathi Steel 
and Power Limited, hereby declare that all the members of 
the Board of Directors and the Senior Management personnel 
have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct, 
applicable to them as laid down by the Board of Directors in 
terms of Regulation 26 (3) of the Listing Regulations for the 
year ended 31st March, 2016.

Sd/- 
Prem Narain Varshney                                                                        

Managing Director  
DIN: 00012709

 
New Delhi 
August 24, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S COMPLIANCE 
CERTIFICATE

To the Members of
RATHI STEEL AND POWER LIMITED
We have examined the compliance of conditions of 
Corporate Governance by Rathi Steel and Power Limited 
(“the Company”), for the year ended on March 31, 2016, 
as stipulated in:

•	 	Clause 49 (excluding clause 49(VII)(E)) of the Listing 
Agreements of the Company with stock exchange(s) for 
the period from April 01, 2015 to November 30, 2015.

•	 Clause 49(VII)(E) of the Listing Agreements of the 
Company with the stock exchange(s) for the period from 
April 01, 2015 to September 01, 2015.

•	 Regulation 23(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the 
Listing Regulations”) for the period from September 02, 
2015 to March 31, 2016 and

•	 Regulations 17 to 27 (excluding regulation 23(4)) and 
clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C, D and 
E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations for the period 
from December 01,2015 to March 31, 2016.

•	 The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance 
is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination 
was limited to the procedures and implementation 
thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 
compliance with the conditions of the

•	 Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the 
Company.

•	 We have examined the relevant records of the Company 
in accordance with the Generally Accepted Auditing 
Standards in India, to the extent relevant and as per the 
Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance 
issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of 
India.

•	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to our examination of the relevant records and 
the explanations given to us and the representations 
made by the Directors and the Management, we certify 
that the Company has complied with the conditions of 
Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the 
Listing Agreement and regulation 17 to 27 and clauses 
(b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C, D and E of 
Schedule V of the Listing Regulations for the respective 
periods of applicability as specified under paragraph 1 
above, during the year ended March 31, 2016.

•	 We state that such compliance is neither an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management 
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

.
For M. LAL & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 
Sd/- 

Place: New Delhi 	  M. L. AGRAWAL
Dated 09.06.2016			  M. No.: 011148
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

RATHI STEEL AND POWER LIMITED 

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 
statements of Rathi Steel And Power Limited (‘the Company’), 
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2016, 
the statement of profit and loss and the cash flow statement 
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial 
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation 
of these standalone financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 
the  Accounting  Standards  specified  under  Section  133 
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of  adequate  accounting  records  in  accordance  with  
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company  and  for  preventing  and  detecting  frauds  and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
standalone financial statements based on our audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the 
accounting and auditing standards and matters which 
are required to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the 
Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a 

true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place 
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements give the information required by the Act 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st 
March 2016  and  its  loss  and  its  cash  flows  for  the  year  
ended  on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

1.	 We draw attention to note no. 10 to the financial 
statements regarding the presentation of the same 
on-going concern basis. The company has incurred a 
net loss of Rs. 91,05,53,469.00 during the year ended 
on March 31, 2016 and as on that date the company’s 
current liabilities exceeds its current assets by Rs. 
7,06,85,697.00 and company’s net worth has been fully 
eroded. These conditions along with other matters as 
set forth in the aforesaid note, indicate the existence of 
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about 
company’s ability to continue as a going concern. These 
financial statements have been prepared on a going 
concern basis for the reasons stated in the said note. 
Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

2.	 In general, it was noticed that applicable statutory 
dues were not deposited within due date to the 
respective authorities. Statutory dues amounting to 
Rs.11,67,48,200.00 have become overdue and remains 
unpaid. Interest/ penalty, if any, in respect of the same 
has remained undertrained and unaccounted for.

3.	 The Company has defaulted in payments of its 
obligations to secured lenders in line with restructuring 
scheme approved by CDR EG. The company has taken 
cognizance of the fact that revival scheme submitted to 
lenders is pending for approval and accordingly has not 
considered any obligation as current liability.

4.	 Interests on secured loans have been provided in 
the books of accounts to the extent provided by the 
lenders.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order,2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
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section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure ‘A’ 
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report 
that:

a.	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b.	 In our opinion proper books of account as required by 
law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books;

c.	 The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and 
the cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account;

d.	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e.	 The matters mentioned in Emphasis of Matter above, 
in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the 
functioning of the Company.

f.	 On the basis of the written representations received from 
directors as on 31st  March 2016 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified 
as on 31st, March 2016 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

g.	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in “Annexure B” and

h.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us:

i. 	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations on its financial position in its financial 
statements – Refer Note 2 to the Notes to Accounts 
attached to financial statements; 

ii. 	 The Company has made provision, as required under 
the applicable law or accounting standards, for material 
foreseeable losses, if any; and

iii. 	 There were no amount required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund in accordance 
with the relevant provisions of the Act and rules made 
there under.

For M. LAL & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration Number: 016069C  
SD/-

Place: New Delhi  		  M. L. AGRAWAL
Dated :09.06.2016                 	       Proprietor

 M. No.: 011148

Annexure–A to the Independent Auditors’ Report The 
Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ 
Report to the members of the Company on the 
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st 
March 2016, we report that: -

1.	 In respect of fixed assets:

a.	 The company has been maintaining details showing 
full particulars, including quantitative details of fixed 
assets.

b.	 We have been informed that physical verification of 
fixed assets has been conducted by the management 
at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies 
were noticed by them.

c.	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us, the title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed 
in the Financial statements, are held in the name of the 
company

2.	 In respect of inventories:

	 According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the physical verification of inventory (excluding stocks lying 
with third parties) has been conducted by the management 
at reasonable intervals. The physical verification of finished 
goods and raw material has been done on estimation 
basis, from time to time, due to the nature of the business 
and the cost involved and discrepancies, if any, were 
properly dealt with in the accounts. In respect of goods 
inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially 
been confirmed by them.

3.	 The Company has not granted any loans, secured 
or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability 
partnership or other parties   covered in the register 
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii) (a), (b), 
and (c) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

4.	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not granted 
any loans, made any investment, given any guarantee 
or security, secured or unsecured, to any companies, 
firms or other parties as covered under section 185 
and 186 of the Act over and above the limits prescribed 
under these sections.

5.	 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public and therefore, the directives issued by Reserve 
Bank of India and provisions of Section 73 to 76 or 
any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and rules framed there under do not apply to the 
Company.

6.	 As informed to us, the Central Government has 
prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of 
manufacturing activities of the Company. We have 
broadly reviewed accounts and records of the Company 
in this connection and are of the opinion that, prima 
facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been 
made and maintained. We have not, however, made a 
detailed examination of the same.
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7.	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records, Company is generally regular in depositing 
with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues 
i.e. income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty 
of customs, value added tax, cess and other statutory 
dues authorities wherever applicable.  However, there 
are some delays in payment of dues for provident fund 
and Employees State Insurance.

	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us, undisputed amounts Rs. 10.36 Crores is payable in 
respect of provident fund, income tax, sales tax, wealth 
tax, service tax, Excise Duty, Entry Tax, value added tax, 
cess and other material statutory dues as at 31 March 
2016 for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable. 

(b)	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us, there are no dues of income tax which have not been 
deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of 
dues of excise duty, service tax, value added tax which 
have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are 
as follows:

Name of 
the Statute

Nature of 
Dues

Amount 
(in lacs)

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates

Forum where 
the dispute is 
pending

Central 
Excise 
Act,1944

Excise 
Duty

317.15 2005-06 to 
2007-08

High Court of 
Odisha

91.21 2008-09 to 
2012-13

Under Appeal 
with CESTAT

19.41 2011-12 & 
2012-13

Additional 
Commissioner. 
Sambalpur / 
Rourkela

2428.72 1995-96 & 
2004-05

Custom Excise 
and Service 
Tax Appellate 
Tribunal- 
Allahabad

75.62 2006-07 Supreme Court 
of India

239.61 2014-15 DGCEI New 
Delhi

Finance 
Act,1994 
Service 
Tax 
Provisions

Service Tax 25.94 2012-13 Additional 
Commissioner. 
Sambalpur / 
Rourkela

Sales Tax 
Act of 
Various 
States

Sales Tax 13.70 2010-11 to 
2013-14

Before Addl. 
Commissioner, 
Northern Zone, 
Sambalpur

2390.57 1994-95 to 
2013-14

Commercial 
Tax Tribunal, 
UP

956.00 1994-95 to 
2013-14

Additional 
Commissioner 
Grade-2, 
Appeal-1,UP

424.78 2011-12 & 
2012-13

Jt. 
Commissioner, 
Appeal, 
Haryana

438.15 2008-09 to 
2010-11

High Court of 
Odisha

Odisha 
Entry Tax 
Act,1999

Entry Tax 6.02 2005-06 to 
2009-10

Commercial 
Tax Tribunal, 
Cuttack

23.75 2008-09 to 
2010-11

High Court of 
Odisha

				  

8. The Company has defaulted in repayment of dues to 
banks during the year. The amount and period of default 
is as under:			 

Nature of Default Period 
(days)

 (Rs. in 
Crores)

Remarks

Principal Repayments 1 Year & 
more

33.25 Up to  
31.03.2016

Interest 1 Year & 
more

54.88 Up to  
31.03.2016

Bank Guarantee Invoked 0.78

Total 88.91
				  

9.	 Accordingly to the information and explanations given 
to us, during the year the Company has not raised any 
fresh share capital and term loans and hence clause 
3(ix) is not applicable.

10.	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us, no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or 
reported during the course of our audit.

11.	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on our examination of the records, 
the Company has paid / provided for managerial 
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with 
schedule V to the Act.

12.	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 
company.

13.	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on our examinations of the records 
of the Company, transactions with the related parties 
are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act, 
where applicable and the details have been disclosed 
in the financial statements as required under applicable 
Accounting Standard.

14.	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and based on our examinations of the records, the 
Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year under report.

15.	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and based on our examinations of the records, the 
Company has not entered into non-cash transaction 
with directors or person connected with them. 
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16.	 The Company is not required to be registered under 
Section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Accordingly, the provision of the Clause 3 (xvi) of the 
order is not applicable to the Company.

For M. LAL & CO. 
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 016069C 
Sd/-  

                                    	 M. L. AGRAWAL
Proprietor

M. No.: 011148
Place: New Delhi  
Dated :09.06.2016

Annexure-B to the Independent Auditors’ Report the 
Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report 
to the members of the Company on the standalone 
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016, 
we report that: -

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause 
(i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Rathi Steel and Power Limited (“the Company”) 
as of 31 March, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal controls over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal controls stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to Company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”)

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standard 
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143 (10) of the Act to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
ACAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all, material respects.        

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
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assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system 
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting

A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 
is a process designed to provided reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorization of management and directors 
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitation of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of the 
changes in the conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies if procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 
an adequate internal financial control system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2016, 
based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal controls stated in the Guidance 
Note on audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by ICAI. 

For M. LAL & CO. 
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 016069C
 

Sd/-
                                   	 M. L. AGRAWAL

Proprietor
M. No.: 011148

Place: New Delhi  
Dated :09.06.2016

     



34

RATHI STEEL AND POWER LTD. 
CIN L27109DL1971PLC005905  
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2016

(Amount in Rs.)



35

RATHI STEEL AND POWER LTD. 
CIN L27109DL1971PLC005905  
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2016			 

(Amount in Rs.)
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RATHI STEEL AND POWER LTD. 
CIN L27109DL1971PLC005905

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016
(Amount in Rs.)
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RATHI STEEL AND POWER LTD. 
CIN L27109DL1971PLC005905 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016

(Amount in Rs.)
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RATHI STEEL AND POWER LTD. 
CIN L27109DL1971PLC005905  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016

(Amount in Rs.)
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RATHI STEEL AND POWER LTD. 
CIN L27109DL1971PLC005905  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016

(Amount in Rs.)
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RATHI STEEL AND POWER LTD. 
CIN L27109DL1971PLC005905  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016

(Amount in Rs.)
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RATHI STEEL AND POWER LTD. 
CIN L27109DL1971PLC005905 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016

(Amount in Rs.)
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RATHI STEEL AND POWER LTD. 
CIN L27109DL1971PLC005905 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016

(Amount in Rs.)
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RATHI STEEL AND POWER LTD. 
CIN L27109DL1971PLC005905  
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR  ENDED 31ST  MARCH, 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016

NOTE 26

1.	 COMPANY INFORMATION

Rathi Steel And Power Limited(formerly Rathi Udyog Limited) 
(the Company) is a public limited company incorporated in 
1971 and engaged in the business of Steel and Steel related 
products.

2.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a)	 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

These financial statements have been prepared under 
historical cost convention from books of account maintained 
on an accrual basis (unless otherwise stated hereinafter) in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
India and comply with the Accounting Standards issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and referred 
to Sec 129 & 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, of India. The 
accounting policies applied by the company are consistent 
with those used in previous year.

All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or 
non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle 
and other criteria set out in the Schedule III of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time 
between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company 
has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the 
purpose of current and non-current classification of assets 
and liabilities.

b)	 Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates 
and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount 
of assets and liabilities on the date of financial statements 
and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during 
reporting period.  Difference between the actual results and 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the results 
are known/ materialized.

c)	 Inventories: 

Inventories are valued as per AS-2 (Valuation of Inventories) 
issued by the ICAI at cost (net of CENVAT credit) or net 
realisable value, whichever is lower and inclusive of excise 
duty. Cost determined on weighted average basis and 
comprises of expenditure incurred in the normal course of 
business in bringing such inventories to their location and 
includes, where applicable appropriate overheads. Inventory 
of Iron Ore and Coal have been segregated according to 
usability at the time of physical verification and are stated at 
Cost or market price whichever is less.

d)	 Tangible Fixed assets and depreciation 
accounting:

Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at original cost net of tax/
duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated depreciation /
amortization /impairment. The cost of fixed assets includes 
freight and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition 
and installation of the respective assets. Borrowings cost 

directly attributable to fixed assets which necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use 
are capitalized. Interest on loans and other financial charges 
in respect of qualifying assets and expenditure incurred on 
startup and commissioning of the project and or substantial 
expansion, including the expenditure incurred on Trial Runs 
up to the date of commencement of commercial production 
are capitalized.

Leasehold land has been revalued as on 31st March, 1992.

e)	 Depreciation

Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets 
as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 as 
per Straight Line Method (SLM).Depreciation on additions/
deductions has been calculated on day-to-day basis.

f)	 Revenue Recognition

Sales comprises of sales of goods and services but net of 
sales returns and includes inter unit transfers. 

Interest income is accounted for on accrual basis.

Dividend income is accounted for on receipt of payment.

g)	 Investments

Trade Investments are the investments meant to enhance 
the company’s interest. Investments are classified as 
current or non-current based on the management’s intention 
at the time of investment. Long-term investments are stated 
at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of long-term 
investment is made only if such a decline is permanent in 
nature. 

h)	 Impairment of Assets

At each Balance Sheet date, the company reviews the 
carrying amounts of assets to determine whether there is 
any indication of impairment of assets. If any indication 
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated, at the higher of 
realizable value and value in use, as considered appropriate. 
If the estimated recoverable amount is less than the carrying 
amount, an impairment loss is recognized in the statement 
of Profit and Loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the 
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash –generating 
unit to which the assets belongs. As per assessment 
conducted by the company as at March 31, 2016, there 
were no indications that the fixed assets have suffered an 
impairment loss.

i)	 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or 
construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part 
of the cost of such assets.  A qualifying asset is one that 
necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready 
for intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged 
revenue.

j)	 Current Tax and Deferred Tax: 

Current Tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in 
respect of taxable income for the period.
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In accordance with the Accounting Standard 22 “Accounting 
for Taxes on Income” issued by The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, the deferred tax liability for timing 
differences between book profits and tax profits is accounted 
for using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted 
or substantially enacted as of Balance Sheet date. Deferred 
Tax Assets are recognized with regard to all deductible timing 
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 
be available against which deductible timing difference can 
be utilized. When the company carries forward accumulated 
losses and unabsorbed depreciation, deferred tax assets 
are recognized only to the extent there is virtual certainty 
backed by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which deferred tax assets 
can be realized. 

k)	 Retirement benefits 

Actual liability for gratuity is provided in respect of eligible 
employees. Other employees’ benefits are accounted for as 
per Company’s policy.

l)	 Accounting for Provisions, Contingent Liabilities 
and Contingent Assets:

A provision is recognized when the company has a present 
obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, 
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 
Provisions are not discounted to present value and are 
determined best estimate required to settle the obligation 
at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each 
Balance Sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates. Contingent Assets are not recognized in the 
financial statements.

m)	 The amount of Stores consumed during the financial 
year includes the value of stores issued for repair and 
maintenance.

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS:

1.	 COMMITMENTS:

Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on 
capital account-Rs.NIL (Rs.NIL)

2.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

A.	 No provision has been made for:

a.	 Outstanding effective Bank Guarantees and Counter 
Guarantees given by the Company Rs.50,17,112/-
(Rs.5,05,17,112/-).

b.	 Outstanding Letter of Credit Rs. Nil.(Rs.6,94,70,000/-)

c.	 Sales tax Liability in respect of goods impounded-
amount unascertained (The Company has deposited 
Rs.27,84,500/- as security with the dept.)

d.	 VAT/Sales Tax liability for various years in respect 
of which either the Company or the department has 
filed appeals with higher authority amounting to 
Rs.42,52,98,558/-.The Company is Confident to get 
relief and chances of any liability is very remote.

e.	 Excise/Service tax cases pending with various statutory 

authorities being disputed Rs.31,97,65,478/-.The 
Company is Confident to get relief and chances of any 
liability is very remote.

f.	 Civil/Recovery suits and Labour cases pending 
against the Company not acknowledged as debts 
Rs.8,65,08,029/-(Rs.3,73,47,274/-).

g.	 The layoff at Orissa unit has been rejected by the 
competent Labour Authority and raised compensation 
of Rs.4.65 Crores .The Company has contested the 
same in the Court.

h.	 As per Gas sales Agreement between GAIL and 
Company, total annual take or pay deficiency upto 
March 2016 works out to Rs.65.99 Crores and GAIL 
has raised a demand of Rs.42.71 Crores which is being 
disputed by the Company.

i.	 WESCO utility, Orissa has raised a demand of Rs.1.24 
Crores towards electricity bills charges for the period 
up to October 2014 which has been disputed by the 
Company. Office of the Ombudsman-II,OERC vide its 
order dated 11.04.2016 has directed the WESCO to 
revise its demand which is still awaited.

j.	 Lenders right to recompense the reliefs/sacrifices/
waivers extended by respective CDR lenders as per 
CDR guidelines.

B.	 Surety given to sales tax dept. for others. The Company 
has not considered these as contingent liability as 
chances of out flow of resources are remote as Company 
has a right to claim the same from other party.

C.	 Income Tax and Sales Tax Assessments:

a.	 Income tax assessments have been completed upto 
assessment year 2012-13.Additional liability, if any, in 
respect of pending assessments, would be provided for 
on completion of assessments.

b.	 Additional demand, if any, in respect of pending 
assessment of Sales Tax/ VAT/Entry Tax would be 
known only on completion of the assessments.

c.	 Additional liability, on account of search conducted by 
the Income Tax Department in the month of January 
2015, would be provided for once finalized.

3.	 Supreme Court in the month of September 2014 has 
cancelled the coal block allotted to the Company. 
Proceeding of the Court in respect of charges framed 
against Company under section 120-B IPC and under 
section 420 r/w Section120 B IPC has since been 
completed though judgment is pending. As per the 
directions of Supreme Court Enforcement Directorate is 
also making investigations in connection with irregularity 
in Coal Block Allotment.

4.	 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS:

Expenditure in Foreign Currency:

a.	 Raw material purchase (CIF) Rs.20,36,00,008/-
(Rs.397777952/-)

b.	 Capital Goods (CIF) – Rs.1447288/-(Rs.5200000/-).
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c.	 Stores Purchased(CIF)-Rs.16684958/-(Rs.6703760/-)

Earning in Foreign Currency (FOB):

Finished goods sale Rs. Nil (Rs. Nil).

5.	 Payment to auditors:

	 a.	 Audit Fee – Rs.4,00,000  (Rs.4,00,000).

	 b.	 Fee for Limited Review – Rs.1,00,000  
		 (Rs.1,00,000).

	 c.	 Out of Pocket Expenses-Rs.15,000 (Rs.15000).

6.	 Sundry debtors, advances, creditors & other liabilities 
includes inter parties transfers and are subject to 
confirmation and consequent adjustments. In the opinion 
of the Board of Directors, the current assets and loans & 
advances except doubtful in nature would realize at least 
the amount at which these are stated in the Balance 
Sheet. For doubtful debts, the Board of Directors is very 
much hopeful for their recovery. Therefore, No provision 
has been made.

7.	 Sundry Creditors includes amount payable to MSME 
amounting to Rs.28.53 lacs. The parties have since filed 
the cases in the court and claimed interest in terms of 
the MSME Act along with Principal amount.

8.	 Company has implemented the approved CDR scheme 
to the extent implemented by the member banks and 
provision for interest has been made to the extent made 
by banks. 

9.	 The Company has defaulted in payments of its obligations 
to secured lenders payable as per restructuring scheme 
approved by CDR EG. The company has not considered 
any obligation as current liability and has taken 
cognizance of the fact that revival scheme submitted to 
lenders is under deliberation.

10.	 The company has incurred a net loss of Rs. 
91,05,53,469.00 during the year ended on March 31, 
2016 and as on that date the company’s current liabilities 
exceeds its current assets by  Rs.7,06,85,697.00 
and company’s net worth has been fully eroded. The 
Company’s financial performance has been adversely 
affected mainly due to depressed economic scenario, 
cheaper imports and lowers than desired infrastructure 
and real estate sector growth. The Company has since 
submitted the revival scheme to all the lenders which is 
under deliberation. 

Rs. in lacs

Particulars Imported Indigenous
2015-16 % 2014-15 % 2015-16 % 2014-15 %

Materials 2036.00 3.55% 3977.78 6.40% 55341.79 96.45% 58180.39 93.60%
Stores and Spares 166.85 7.12% 67.04 4.03% 2177.66 92.88% 1597.96 95.97%

Details of consumption of imported and indigenous items

	 These financial statements have been prepared on 
a going concern basis on the strength of continued 
support of the promoters, bankers / other lenders and 
signs of recovery in general economic scenario. 

11.	 Earnings Per Share (EPS):

Earnings per Share (EPS) – the numerators and 
denominators used to calculate earnings per share:-

Particulars Year Ended 
on 31.03.2016

Year 
Ended on 

31.03.2015
Profit/ (Loss) attributable to the 
Equity Shareholders (Rs.) (A) 

(910553469) (823923124)

Profit/ (Loss) Cash attributable 
to the Equity Shareholders (Rs.) 
(B) 

(674501643) (434349846)

Weighted average number of 
Equity Shares Outstanding 
during the year (C)

31308111 31308111

Nominal Value of Share (Rs.) 10 10
Earnings Per Share (Rs.) (A)/
(C )

(29.08) (26.32)

Earnings Per Share (Cash) (Rs.) 
(B)/(C)

(21.54) (13.87)

12.	 Related Party Disclosure:

	 In accordance with Accounting Standard (AS-18) on 
related party disclosure, where control exists and 
where key management personnel are able to exercise 
significant influence and, where transactions have 
taken place during the year, along with description of 
relationship identified, are given below:

	 a)	 Individuals

			  1.	 Shri Udit Rathi
			  2.	 Smt. Sonal Rathi
			  3.	 Smt. Divya Rathi
	 b)	 Key Managerial Personnel
			  Shri Pradeep Kumar Rathi
			  Shri P N Varshney
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c)	 The following transactions were carried out with related 
parties in the ordinary course of business:

(Rs)

Particulars Key Managerial Personnel Individuals
Paid for rendering 

of services
3107490 5280000

							       As per our Report of even date
For M. LAL & Co.

Chartered Accountants
	

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/-	 Sd/- 
	 Sakshi Sethi	 P N Varshney	 Pradeep Kumar Rathi 	 M.L. Agrawal 
	Company Secretary	 Director	 Managing Director	 M. No. 011148

	 Sd/- 
	Shyam Bageshara 
	 CFO	

		

Place: New Delhi

Dated: 09.06.2016

13.	 Segmental Reporting:

	 The business activity of the company falls within 
one broad segment viz Steel.  Hence the disclosure 
requirement of Accounting Standard-17 of “Segment 
Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accounts 
of India is not given.

14.	 Previous year figures have been regrouped or recast 
wherever necessary.			 
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